
MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency Meeting

Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, July 14, 2009
I. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 10:35 AM by Chairperson Weimer.  Six members present:
Dennis Weimer

Rochelle Kay



Bill Van Duzer



Joanne Shamp


Joe Yerkes


Carlton Ryffel – New member

Staff present:  LPA Attorney Ann Dalton; Community Development Director Dr. Frank Shockey, staff member Keith Laakonen; Members of the public and press were also present.  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. INVOCATION - Mr. Dennis Weimer
IV. MINUTES
Motion:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to adopt the minutes of the LPA meeting of February 24, 2009  
    Seconded by Ms. Shamp;
Vote:       Motion passed 6-0
Administrative Note:  Mr. Weimer reported that there was a request to postpone the Public Hearings until after noon and move instead to the Administrative Agenda.  Ms. Shamp noted possible opposition from the public and asked if the LPA could hear comment from the public regarding this decision.  Ms. Dalton answered with the legal issues involving this and there was discussion.  Mr. Van Duzer suggested opening the hearing with only the public comment portion, and then continuing it later.  

Motion:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as the LPA and reconvene as the HPB;  
    Seconded by Ms. Kay.
Vote:       Motion passed 6-0
V. ADJOURN AS THE LPA- RECONVENE AS HPB
VI. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. COA2009-0001 “The Cottage” Special Certificate of Appropriateness for Demolition
Ms. Shamp opened the public hearing at 10:42 AM, with all members present.  She asked for any ex-parte communications from members.  Mr. Van Duzer stated he has had numerous people talk to him about this issue, informally, and said he did not give his opinions.  Ms. Shamp stated she had one resident approach her with an opinion.  Mr. Mandel had a family member of the former owner comment to him.  Mr. Weimer said he has had some communication through his involvement in a committee dealing with future uses of these properties, but felt that this has no bearing on his ability to deal fairly in this hearing.  Ms. Dalton swore in the witnesses.  Ms. Shamp asked for the Affidavit of Publication.  Dr. Shockey stated that the affidavit was not yet available but Town Clerk attests that the ad ran in News-Press last week.  He also stated that the applicant was notified by certified mail, return receipt requested.  
Open public comment.

Herb Acken addressed the HPB as a private citizen and supports retaining the Cottage.  He stated that the Town does not have many real assets and there may be a need to use other buildings in the future, so the building should be preserved for at least that reason.  He suggested putting the building on Ebay for sale.  He also stated that this is an historic building, as well as an asset of the Town.
Lee Melsek, Ft. Myers Beach, addressed the HPB, once again reporting that the categorizing of this structure, in the first place, as an historic place was erroneous, since the property was not built on the beach and is not beach architecture.  He further stated that the only criterion that it does meet for the “historic” designation is that it is more than 50 yrs. old.  He said that the state has already said it is not historic, the Town Council has said it is not historic; in view of the current financial burdens, he feels there is no reason to spend more money in saving a structure that has no relationship to island history.  He criticized the HPB for wanting to keep the building.  He said “it’s time to get rid of the building called ‘The Cottage’ and get on with developing Newton Park.”
No further public comment.
Motion:  Mr. Weimer moved to continue this hearing until noon and including continuation of

                public comment then.
    Seconded by Mr. Ryffel.
Vote:       Motion passed 6-0
    Ms. Shamp closed the hearing and asked for motion to adjourn.

Motion:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as the HPB and reconvene as the LPA.


    Seconded by Mr. Mandel;

Vote: 
    Motion passed 6-0

VII. ADJOURN AS HPB-RECONVENE AS LPA
Mr. Weimer reconvened the LPA at 10:56 AM.

VIII.  ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
A.  Revised Animal Control Provisions
Mr. Weimer referred to the June 4th Memo by Dr. Shockey (in packets), regarding modifications in the proposed ordinance.   
Mr. Van Duzer referred to a recent memo of July 6, 2009, from the Town attorney, as a suggestion by the county that the Town adopt the county ordinance as its own and make whatever changes they see fit; he suggested a discussion of that possibility.  Ms. Shamp said that that this was also the recommendation of the Town Council last year and she agrees with Mr. Van Duzer’s suggestion to take a bit more time to finalize this.

Mr. Mandel said that there is $66,000.00 charged by the county to the Town for current control.  He feels that this is too much money to pay for the service.  Mr. Weimer also agreed with this suggestion and wants to incorporate the state, county and local ordinance contents into a workable one for the beach.  He asked staff’s opinion on going back again and studying the revised county ordinance.  Dr. Shockey said that he had looked at changing the ordinance in a way that the town would have the option to employ the county to enforce the ordinance without conflicting with their procedures, or to employ someone else, without having to change the ordinance to have that flexibility.

Mr. Weimer again asked if it is better to take the county ordinance and tweak it with the couple of items that the LPA has come up with, or to have an ordinance that starts with the state law provisions, includes requirements similar to the county’s, and then includes the Town’s own concerns.  Ms. Dalton stated that it is basically a policy issue.  She then tried to explain that the county’s position is that much of the $66,000.00 is the overhead cost of taking on the Town’s enforcement.  She said that she and Mr. Janke have been working on this and one of the options they’ve come up with for the Council is to have no ordinance, pointing out that the Town now has three animal control ordinances that are somewhat redundant.  So, repeal of all of the ordinances and doing nothing is an option but would cause portions of the state law, like dangerous dogs, etc., to be subject to enforcement by the sheriff.  Theoretically, the Town would not be charged for the service because the sheriff is required by state law to enforce state law; the sheriff charges when they must enforce Town ordinances.  She said that the bad side of this is not knowing what priority the sheriff would give to this and the Town may not be happy with their service, or lack thereof.  Ms. Dalton said the second option being proposed by the county is using their ordinance because they feel that doing so would streamline their procedure and enforcement since it would be the same here as it is in many other communities.  The county has requested that the ordinances all stay consistent so that their officers can open to a section in the Town’s code and have it read the same as that same section in the county code.  

Mr. Weimer said that he still feels that the LPA is “not taking care of business” by adopting the county ordinance and not dealing with beach-specific animal concerns. 

Mr. Mandel asked if the Town would still need to pay the $66,000.000 if the Town did not adopt the county ordinance at all and, instead, relied totally of the state.  Ms. Dalton explained that by having any ordinance, the county’s services would be required for some form of enforcement.  Dr. Shockey expanded on her explanation, saying that if there is a state law, there are provisions within that state law process for someone to go to court regarding the ordinance violation and county animal control officers, but not municipal animal control officers, can investigate violations of state law.  By having a local ordinance the county can choose to handle the violations by civil citation instead. 
Mr. Ryffel asked a few questions for clarification, as to where the modifications came from and why there are a few specific items; Dr. Shockey explained.  Mr. Ryffel then asked if the county would have to review the Town’s suggestions for revised ordinance before passing/approving it.  Ms. Dalton replied that this was a sovereign immunity issue and that the county would enter into a contractual situation with the Town, agreeing to take the Town’s ordinance and enforce it, but the county does not have to sign off on it.  Mr. Ryffel suggested that the LPA deal with the county’s request by taking the staff suggestions for local issues and incorporating them into the county ordinance.  
Mr. Weimer said that the whole problem leading up to this is that the county was not enforcing what existed at the time and did not want to enforce additional things the Town wanted.  He said the first short-term animal control ordinance that the LPA recommended be passed would have given the Town the right to make a decision as to who would enforce it.  He said that if the Town goes with the county ordinance, it is right back at the same point it was a year ago.   Ms. Dalton stated that the Town could take a “skeleton” of the county ordinance and add the other pieces to it; she agreed that adopting the county ordinance as-is would “awful.”  
Mr. Weimer recalled the items put into the proposed short-term ordinance back in November 2008 and said the main thing was to give the Town the ability to separately contract with someone that would enforce the ordinance on the beach.  He also added that they wanted a leash requirement, a leash length requirement, a “clean up” requirement and to give the Town the right to address other animals that are not even covered in the county’s ordinance.  
Dr. Shockey and Ms. Dalton agreed that the easiest and most efficient way to address this is to take the county ordinance, strip out what the Town does not want and add in what it does want.   Ms. Shamp said that she would also like to add something about animals in the dunes and asked the staff Environmentalist, Keith Laakonen, if there was anything else he would like to see included.   Mr. Laakonen felt that the terms “pets” and “dogs” should be clarified and signs be specific to restrict all pets from certain areas.  
Mr. Ryffel referred to the “17 pg. document” in the packets and asked if it included all of the appropriate regulations of the ordinance and whether it is the document for review.  Mr. Weimer again asked which would be the best method.  Ms. Shamp opined that the Town cannot address animal control cheaper than the county method and thought that one LPA member should work with Dr. Shockey to start with the county ordinance, add in what the Town wants, remove the rest and go from there. 

Mr. Mandel agreed and added that there should still be negotiation with the county for a lower price, but if not possible, perhaps add in some type of penalty for non-compliance.  He pointed out that there are no remedies for the county’s lack of response and/or enforcement and there should be something for that amount of money.  Discussion ensued about the additional county issues and the Town issues. 
Motion:   Mr. Van Duzer moved that the LPA direct staff to adapt the county ordinance, 

                 including wording required to address the additional items suggested, and move it 

                 forward to a hearing of the draft ordinance.
     Seconded by Ms. Kay;  
Vote:        Motion passed 6-0.
Motion:    Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as the LPA and reconvene as the HPB.


     Seconded by Mr. Mandel.

Vote:        Motion carried 6-0.

IX. ADJOURN AS LPA; RECONVENE AS HPB 
A. Continuation:  COA2009-0001 “The Cottage” Special Certificate of Appropriateness for Demolition
Ms. Shamp called the continuation of the hearing to order at 11:52 AM, with all members present.  Ms. Dalton swore in witnesses.  Ms. Shamp asked the applicant to present its case.

Town Manager Scott Janke, addressed the HPB, representing the applicant along with Theresa Schober and Councilmember Raymond.  Mr. Janke gave an overview of the matter, stating that Ms. Schober would elaborate.  He said that the deadline for razing the Cottage is Oct. 1.  The Town did issue an RFP for relocating the Cottage with no response received.  
Ms. Schober referred to the application in the packets which is for certificate of appropriateness for the Town to demolish the Newton Cottage.  She said the property consisted of six lots and was acquired with assistance from FL Communities Trust and Lee County.  She restated the initial intention of the acquisition, which was to develop a beachfront park with interpretive signage on environmental and cultural themes, to provide restroom facilities and community meeting space.  The Town has been seeking alternative locations for the remaining structures, without success.  On April 8, 2009, the Town issued an RFP for interested parties to purchase/take over the property, with unsuccessful results.  She added that demolition is allowable under the acquisition guidelines, according to the state.  The applicant requests that the HPB concentrate on the adaptive reuse of the Newton estate, thereby going ahead with demolition of this structure to provide more resources for the remaining property and use by the community.

Ms. Kay asked about the errors in the original application for designation and asked what they are.  Ms. Schober referred to the “existing conditions” area of the applicant’s narrative, included in packets, where there are several points to address this, i.e., the family didn’t own the building until the 1970s, the building is not 1940’s construction, as indicated, etc.  Location of origin and history cannot be documented.
Council Robert Raymond addressed the HPB as a representative of Town Council.  Mr. Raymond stated that he has an architectural report done for the Town in March of 2007 on the Newton Park property.  He referred only to the part that pertains to the Cottage.  The report states that the Cottage was present as early as 1944, having been moved here from elsewhere.  The report also supports that the Cottage is not historically relevant and it does not illustrate any history.  He continued to read from the report (included in the HPB packets).  In summary, he expressed the feeling of the Council in that they want to get the Newton property up and running as a useful, enjoyable part of the Town as soon as possible. 

Mr. Weimer asked Ms. Schober if there was any estimate to move the Cottage.  She said the only one she was aware of was an estimate to move it to Connecticut St., at a base price of $263,000, not including costs from FPL and other utilities.  There was some discussion about additional and specific costs, mostly included in the report.
Mr. Weimer asked what steps are necessary to proceed, should the HPB approve demolition.  Ms. Schober said that the FL Communities Trust gave specific steps to follow (in the packets of information) in the event this is the decision.  She did not see any problems in proceeding with the HPB’s decision.  

Ms. Kay asked for the management plan and the razing of the property.  Ms. Schober said there are issues like hazardous materials to deal with and these have not been estimated yet.  Mr. Janke added that, if demolition is granted, the Town would contact the fire company to see if they would help and use the site as a training place. 
Ms. Shamp asked Ms. Schober if, in her expert opinion, relocation has been shown to not be feasible based on no response from the RFPs, efforts to relocate by the state or county at Edison, that the structure may have some issues regarding its ability to be moved because the walls may be weak, and that the cost involved in moving it to Connecticut St. and the fact that it is not significant on state or federal level.  Ms. Schober stated that the Town hasn’t formally had a structural evaluation so she cannot speak about that.  Ms. Shamp then asked if the cost to rehabilitate is not feasible based on the architectural report, which estimates the costs of repairs to be $110,000.00.  Ms. Schober did not agree with that cost and said that there are other estimates which are, unfortunately higher.  Ms. Shamp asked if the cost of rehabilitation might not be justified according to the lack of historical significance due to errors in the original historic designation report.  Ms. Schober did not wish to act as an expert for the LPA today.  She said that the applicant has proposed that the costs are too high for budgeting at this time; the applicant has a goal for the property to be open park space and this building is not consistent with that goal.   Ms. Shamp asked if there would be an attempt to auction or otherwise market some of the interesting parts of the building.  Ms. Schober said that the Town has not proposed to do so.
Ms. Shamp asked for staff to present its case.  Dr. Shockey addressed the HPB on behalf of staff.  He said that staff’s recommendation is to approve the demolition with some recommended conditions:  the applicant must still comply with the provisions of the deed restrictions and obligations laid upon them by the state of Florida and its agencies; and the permit cannot be issued until an actual order has been issued by an appropriate governmental body or court.  Dr. Shockey continued in his points dealing with the historical designation and referred to an architectural report, provided by the applicant, which agrees that the building is not “unique enough for the architecture to be the sole factor which determines significance.”  He also mentioned Exhibit A, a letter (in packets) from the director from the state division of Historic Resources, wherein he concurs with the architect’s report stating that “because of extensive alterations, it is our opinion that this residence is not eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.”  The Land Development Code includes criteria for issuance of a certificate of appropriateness in Chapter 22.  The staff report addresses those criteria, one of which stipulates that the specific guidelines in the resolution that designated the historic resource must be followed.  That resolution, FMBHD2004-02, attached as Exhibit B, does not include specific guidelines; so, staff recommends that the HPB find that the resolution does not contain guidelines related to the structure.  In addition, the general requirement for issuing a certificate of appropriateness is that the Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation of Historic Properties (also in packets-Attachment A) be followed; those standards are applicable to proposed rehabilitation projects, but this request is for demolition.  The staff recommendation here is that these standards do not apply to the request, which is for demolition.  The last set of criteria in Chapter 22 contains specific criteria to be considered before the HPB can issue a special certificate of appropriateness for demolition.  Dr. Shockey recited these criteria and referred to the staff report (in packets) which addresses this and the other criteria in Chapter 22.  Overall, Dr. Shockey stated that the staff recommendation is supported by the findings of the architect that the structure is not sufficiently historic from an architectural perspective  to warrant preservation, and that the historic value of the property will be preserved through the rehabilitation and reuse of the “Seven Seas” building within the Newton Park property.  The staff recommendation is approval, subject to the conditions, with the request that the HPB enter the report and its attachments and exhibits as staff’s additional testimony in this matter.
Public comment opened.
No comment in addition to earlier comments.

Public comment closed.

Ms. Schober, on behalf of the applicant, concurs with the staff report.  Ms. Shamp closed the testimony portion and asked for discussion.  
Mr. Ryffel desired to move to approve the staff recommendation.  This was corrected    by Ms. Dalton who advised that there is a resolution in the packet and Ms. Shamp offered assistance from Mr. Weimer to guide Mr. Ryffel.
Motion:   Mr. Weimer moved approval of Resolution 2009-14, going through the whereas clauses and findings, and corrected the STRAP number to read 29-46-24W30080H.0030.  The HPB APPROVES the issuance of a Special Certificate of Appropriateness for demolition of the subject property, subject to the conditions set forth.   (“Whereas” clauses were stated for the resolution stated, including additional ones given by Ms. Dalton):
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The HPB finds that the building or structure IS NOT of such interest or quality that it would reasonably meet national, state or local criteria for additional designation as a historic or architectural landmark, pursuant to the requirements of LDC Section 22-104(d).

2. The HPB finds that the building or structure IS of such design, craftsmanship or material that it could be reproduced only with great difficulty or expense.

3. The HPB finds that the building or structure IS NOT one of the last remaining examples of its kind in the neighborhood, the town, county or the region.
4. The HPB finds that the building or structure DOES NOT contribute to the historic character of a designated historic district.

5. The HPB finds that retention of the building or structure WOULD promote the general welfare of the Town by providing an opportunity for the study of local history, architecture and design, or by developing an understanding of the importance and value of a particular culture and heritage.

6. The HPB finds that there ARE definite plans for reuse of the property if the proposed demolition is carried out.  

7. The HPB finds that demolition of the designated building or structure HAS NOT been ordered.

8. The HPB finds that the criteria for issuance of a certificate of appropriateness pursuant to the requirements of LDC Section 22-101(b) HAVE been met by this application.
In addition, the staff report should be attached in the findings of fact.

Seconded by Mr. Mandel;

Ms. Shamp asked for discussion.  Ms. Kay again stated her feelings that certain items in the Cottage should be preserved and that she still believes this is a historical building.  Mr. Weimer also feels the same about the historic significance of the building but supports that the expenses on the part of the Town just to save the building would be a hardship that he cannot support.  He feels that there could be future use of the building by the Town, however.  Mr. Van Duzer also shares the feelings of Mr. Weimer and Ms. Kay, and he is saddened by having to make this decision.  Mr. Mandel also is torn by this decision but realizes the financial strain on the Town in trying to save the structure.  Ms. Shamp added that she too has a difficult time with this decision but is satisfied that there is no other answer, since the applicant was diligent in attempting to save the building and there is no other option.  She agreed that trying to sell some of the valuable items in the Cottage may help the Town in other ways.
Vote: 
   Motion passed 6-0.

Hearing closed.
Motion:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as HPB and reconvene as LPA.

               Second by Ms. Kay;

Vote:      Motion passed 6-0.

X. ADJOURN AS THE HPB AND RECONVENE AS LPA
Meeting adjourned at 12:58 PM and recessed for lunch break.

BREAK FOR LUNCH

Reconvene at 1:41 PM.
XI. PUBLIC HEARING
A. DCI2009-0001 Newton Park CPD
Ms. Dalton swore in witnesses.  Dr. Shockey presented that the affidavit was not available but the hearing was advertised at the same time and dates as the previous historic preservation hearing, and mailings were sent to surrounding neighbors.  No members have had ex-parte communications but Mr. Weimer stated that he does participate in local government meetings wherein this subject is sometimes discussed.  Mr. Weimer asked for the applicant to present its case.
Theresa Schober, Cultural Resources Director, addressed the LPA and had Greg Disario of David M. Jones Landscape Architects with her to give a joint presentation.  Ms. Schober gave a brief opening statement to give the reasoning for the hearing.  She said the Town is requesting to change the current zoning of the Newton Property at 4600, 4610 and 4650 Estero Blvd. from residential conservation to commercial planned development to support the intended uses of the property that are identified in the Town’s grant agreement with FL Communities Trust and Lee County.  She referred to the packet of information provided to the LPA members, including the warrantee deed, of which Exhibit B is the Town’s grant award agreement, in the application it is Exhibit 7.71.  This was included because it specifies the uses that were intended for the property which lead to the acquisition of the property with the grant funds.  She read an example from the specifications “the project site shall be managed only by for the conservation, protection and enhancement of natural and historical resources and for passive natural resource based outdoor recreation which is compatible with” these and other related uses.  Ms. Schober said that the CPD the applicant put together meets the varied activities that were intended for this property, such as picnic areas, nature trails, user oriented recreation facilities, etc.  It will include signage on natural environments, educational classes, a staffed museum run by volunteers, protection of habitats, etc.  Ms. Schober said that Supplement D details the variety of Comp Plan objectives that this project meets, which were part of the manner in which the Town received the funding.  Ms. Schober presented a board with the listing of these uses for the audience to view.  
She stated dates for the two public meetings in February 2009 wherein the public had opportunity to voice opinions and many attended and were supportive, giving input for ideas.  She said that much of the public comment is included in the application in the packets.

Ms. Schober gave a few of the uses for the property and said that the applicant’s intention is that this will be a neighborhood park, less than one acre, which will provide recreational facilities to the public, it will provide access to the beach, the building is intended to be used for educational programs, public meetings, lecture and conference space and possible rental to commercial entities, etc. as included in the application.  There is also proposed use for a retail store to sell Newton items, educational materials and other items to assist in costs. There is a proposed use for consumption of alcohol on the property for special receptions, celebrations and gatherings on a limited, case-by-case basis, to include beer and wine and not for everyday sale or use.  She then introduced Greg Disario to present the Master Concept Plan and the Conceptual Site Plan but noted that the staff report had a few inaccuracies in it:  pg. 5-6 a gazebo is mentioned but it is not intended for the property; the other issue is in Condition 7, pg. 3, the language in the citing of the LDC “Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages on Premises” only allows up to twelve events per year, but the applicant feels this is too low a number and more would allow for much more revenue for the project.
Greg Disario walked the meeting through the site layout (included in the packet of information).  He pointed out highlights such as a future trolley stop at the location and parking issues to include a “one-way” circulation and turning the traffic to the side street so as not to need any more ingress from Estero Blvd.  Mr. Disario talked about the proposed walkways and trails, with Bocce courts and picnic areas, handicapped accessibility to the property.  Ms. Schober added there were five deviations proposed, which were summarized into three by Dr. Shockey, and these will be part of the MCP.

Mr. Mandel asked how many people would be attending events there and how that will affect the parking situation.  She said that there are 19 spaces proposed, in addition to the dozen that exist at the Strandview access.  The building is only 1700 s/ft. and there is more parking than is required for the uses.  

Mr. Ryffel asked where the “consumption on premises” is on the property.  She said it would be events with temporary permits allowing consumption inside and a limited area outside.  He asked if this would then allow alcohol on the beach and Ms. Schober said it would not but deferred to Dr. Shockey to explain the details.  Mr. Ryffel pointed out that there would be discussion about this subject later in the meeting and suggested that she may want to be part of that meeting since it will effectively impact her proposal.  Mr. Ryffel asked and Ms. Schober agreed that these events would be “special” and require temporary permits and that there is no intention to have this option for “any time we feel like it” consumption events.
Ms. Kay asked how events and parties are compatible with the intended uses for the property pertaining to “preservation of natural resources, etc.”  Ms. Schober stated that these things were all discussed and reviewed by the FL Communities Trust and have all been approved, noting that this would not be intended as a regular daycare but perhaps an occasional day camp for learning about the resources, etc.  She said that the schedule of uses is identical as those for the Mound House, which include special alcoholic consumption on the premises.  

Ms. Shamp asked what restrictions are in place at the Mound House.  Ms. Schober said that the outside events could only be in conjunction with a permitted special event, which is the Town special event process.  Inside there is no greater than a two- hour time period and limited to beer and wine.  Ms. Shamp asked how the facility would be used for a special event at the same time as keeping the public area still open and public.  Ms. Schober stated that there would be a type of cordoning off the “event area.”  She gave examples of other county sites that do this in a similar manner.  Ms. Shamp also asked about the seawall and what would be in place to keep people from falling over.  Ms. Schober said there is a proposed dune for the spot, referring to her visual aids, and added that there would be a security when people are actually present there.  Mr. Disario addressed the question as well and described how the dunes proposed would help keep children safe on the property.
Mr. Ryffel asked if there were any plans for music/entertainment connected to weddings, etc.  She said that these issues have not been fully addressed yet because those uses haven’t been adopted by Council yet, but that they are not asking for amplified music there.  He then asked what is on each side of the property and she pointed out the site on the diagram describing the residence and commercial properties.
Mr. Weimer had a concern about losing some parking on Strandview and Ms. Schober said that the net result would be more spaces.  Mr. Weimer referred to the staff report, item 7 under “conditions” and then LDC Section34-12-64(d); he asked what her recommendation would be.  Ms. Schober said the applicant is only asking that this not be limited to twelve events annually for the site.  Mr. Weimer only brought up the points already discussed by Ms. Schober, for clarification and these were repeated and made clear.  
Mr. Mandel asked a question regarding permitting of these events to which Ms. Schober deferred to Dr. Shockey.  Ms. Dalton intervened, citing Ordinance 97-5, the Town Parks and Recreation Ordinance, and read Section 13 “a person under written contract with the Town may sell, serve and/or permit to be sold beer and wine at events designated by the Town, and persons may consume said beer and wine sole bearing on the premises on the premises only without violating the provisions of this section.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Council is hereby authorized to designate by resolution for a one-time event any recreation facility whereby the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages may be allowed when the private group making application must secure a permit or license authorized by Chapter 561 and the Town manager may place restriction or limitation.”
Ms. Kay asked how the residents of the private home next to the property feel about these proposals.  Ms. Schober said they were actually in favor of this (Ashton family).  Mr. Van Duzer commented that he personally knows the family and they have expressed to him how “tickled” they are to see this possible change take place, especially the traffic.  
Mr. Weimer then asked staff to present its case.  Dr. Shockey again briefed the audience as to the request of the applicant to rezone a bit less than .8 acres from RC to CPD, which would allow the schedule of uses for adapted reuse of the Newton Property and to allow some deviations for the LDC.  Staff recommends approval of the request to rezone, with a series of conditions as noted in the staff report.  He noted that on the MCP there are five deviations, some of which are related and can be dealt with by one simpler deviation.  The first allows for the use of site development regulations that are specified in Condition 2 of the staff report.  He gave the highlights of the deviations and asked for questions if there were any specific points he failed to make.  He said the in the case of on-premises consumption of alcoholic beverages, there are state laws with which the applicant would need to comply, regardless of the Town’s decision, and this condition clarifies that this would still be the case and provides for temporary permits or a membership organization permit.  He said that the limitation of twelve events per year is simply a code stipulation and could certainly be edited in this case, as long as state regulations were followed.
Dr. Shockey continued to address each deviation and just gave main points, all in support of the rezoning for this property uses.  He said that with the recommended limiting conditions, the request is all consistent with the recreation future land use category.  He also said that there was no problem with the concern about the use of the word “gazebo” to describe a platform proposed to be located on the property since it does not matter if the structure there is a gazebo or platform, etc., as long as it complies with the building code requirements and the flood development regulations.  
Dr. Shockey then completed his testimony by asking the LPA to accept the staff report and all attachments as the remainder of staff testimony.

Ms. Shamp asked about the surrounding zoning.  Dr. Shockey said the NW is RM; the SE is RC; across Estero is RPD and RM; SW is EC because it is the beach.

Mr. Weimer suggested adding a different term for the “gazebo” and Ms. Schober agreed, requesting that it just be changed; Ms. Dalton agreed to modify the language in the resolution. 

Public comment opened.

No public comment.

Public comment closed.

Ms. Schober asked Dr. Shockey asked if there should be a change of the term “principal use” to “accessory” use so that there is no conflict.  Dr. Shockey read from the definition and applicant agreed to change the word in the MCP.
Mr. Ryffel stated that he didn’t see a difference in calling the accessory structure a platform or a gazebo.  Discussion took place about the word to use for this structure.

Mr. Weimer asked what language would need to be included in the resolution if the LPA would grant elimination of the limit of twelve events.  Dr. Shockey agreed that there could be a specific number or it could be just left open.  Mr. Weimer asked what the restrictions were at the Mound House. 
Testimony portion closed; LPA discussion opened.

Motion:     Mr. Ryffel moved to approve the rezoning aligned with the staff recommendations, except that the restriction on the number of temporary permits for alcoholic beverage service be removed.

Ms. Shamp strongly opposed the elimination of the number of permits.  She said that they need to uphold the Comp Plan and the LDC and said she sees nothing in the Comp Plan about the Newton property in Policy 10D, where it is supposed to be an oasis park with interpretive rest facilities; the deed restrictions says “passive, natural resource based outdoor recreation compatible with the site..”  She said that removing this restriction opens the property to more commercial use and less passive park, although she does support the “occasional” use of alcoholic beverages because this would be a nice Town resource for some events.  However, she pointed out that she does not feel this would fit in with the intent of the Comp Plan , the intent of the deed restriction or the intent of a community park.
Ms. Kay said that she believes that, as a passive park many of the requests are not in line.  Specifically, opening the limitation on the number of events would further her feeling of commercializing this area.  She also said that “gazebo” is in the reports but she recommends that word be changed to “educational platform.”

Mr. Mandel said he just thought that, should there be a restriction, it should be made by staff at the time of permitting.

Mr. Weimer understands Ms. Shamp’s concerns but also pointed out that there are revenue opportunities to the Town and there would be limits as to who could use this property, and when they could use it, if restrictions were made.  

Ms. Dalton requested adding a reference to Town Ordinance 97-5, in Condition 7, so that the language would read “any on-premise consumption of alcoholic beverages must comply with all applicable provisions of state law and agency rules, as well as Town Ordinance 97-5, as amended.”  Inclusion of the Findings of Fact from the staff report would be #9, “the findings of fact set forth in the staff report annotated SR, and provided to the LPA on the date of this hearing are hereby incorporated by references fully set forth herein, with the exception of the references of “gazebo,” pg. 5 and 6, to be modified to read ‘educational platform’.”
Mr. Weimer asked for re-crafting of Conditions 7 & 8 for the resolution.
Recess for drafting of the resolution.
Ms. Dalton explained the changes and read them into the record, as above.  

The resolution “whereas” clauses were read and accepted and the Recommended Findings and Conclusions were read separately and resulted as follows:

Item 1 wording is “IS CONSISTENT” and “COMPLIES”.  In item 2 “there IS NOT an error”; ITEM 3 is “there DO EXIST changes”; Item 4 is “uses IS appropriate”; Item 5 is “sufficient safeguards ARE provided”; Item 6 “all conditions ARE reasonably related”; Item 7 is “as conditioned, MEETS all performance”; Item 8a is “DOES”; 8b is “WILL”  item 8c is “DOES operate” and “DOES NOT operate to the detriment”; Item 8d is “IS CONSISTENT”;  and the LPA recommendation on each deviation 1—3 is “APPROVED.”  Mr. Ryffel signified his agreement with these revisions.
Motion seconded by:  Mr. Mandel;
Vote:
      Motion carried 4-2 with members Kay and Shamp opposed.

Hearing closed at 3:20 PM.

XII. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

Mr. Weimer directed the LPA’s attention to the item for discussion of the proposed LDC amendment to add Section 14-12 for licensing of beach furniture.
A. Discussion of amendment to LDC Chapter 14 to add Section 14-12, requiring licensing of vendors of beach furniture.
Ms. Shamp said that she does not like to see more regulations that cannot be enforced and that Section 14-12a1 is unnecessary and should be deleted; as well as 14-12b2, the refuse containers, should be amended.  She also had conflict with where the chairs can be placed and can the vendors operate on state property.  Mr. Laakonen agreed that they can.

Mr. Ryffel asked Ms. Shamp to clarify her concerns; she said that she wants to see the LPA approve 14-12a, but remove “or complimentary use” and move beach furniture vending license up to #1 (see packet information).  Regarding the receptacles, she just wants clarification about “portable or fixed turtle friendly receptacles.  

Mr. Mandel referred to a letter received from a citizen (vendor) which brings a question as to whether these restrictions border on restraint of trade.  Ms. Dalton clarified for the audience that this is in reference from a Ms. Hickey of Gulf Coast Cabana Rentals, who is present.  In the letter (included in the packets), she refers to PWVLs and PAL licenses, which are in the LDC, and said she did not know the legislative history of determining the numbers so she could not pass a judgment about restraint of trade.  She added that the government maintains the ability to pass legislation, as long as there is a rational basis for it so, if there is a basis for the numbers, it is fine; if not, that would be a problem.
Mr. Weimer recalled that the LPA had asked for more information about what happened and why this had not been passed by the original Council and how it got resubmitted to the LPA.  He said that research led him to the conclusion that the original topic for discussion at that time was about raking and cleaning the beach.  He said that somehow the furniture issue became part of it, when there is already a section in Sec. 14-5 which addresses this.  He added that the last hearing produced information that the people who are supplying these services are currently getting occupational licenses and are living within the LDC.  He feels that this whole item should be dismissed off of the agenda and the beach furniture issue is covered, not needing additional regulation.  He further expanded to the insurance subject being raised and said it only got included when the talks turned to parasailing.  
Motion:
Mr. Weimer moved to dismiss the whole issue from the agenda.



Second by Mr. Van Duzer;

Dr. Shockey advised that the Town Council initiated the amendment process so he suggested that the LPA pass a resolution that they recommend this not be adopted to communicate why they have not held a hearing.   Ms. Dalton advised that there is no need for a hearing if the LPA feels the issue should not be pursued.  Mr. Weimer asked for public comment.

Public comment opened.

Mr. Charles Hester, Chair of the Marine Resources Task Force, addressed the LPA.  He gave an overview of Section 14-12, saying that it is designed to alleviate the storage hardship for the properties which cannot meet the LDC off-beach requirements and the LDC says “furniture must be removed from the beach between the hours of 9:00 PM and 7:00 AM, and put either behind the permanent dune line, or where the beach is wide and there is none, than 200 ft. from the mean high water line; or where the beach is narrow, to an adjacent permanent structure and landward of any seawall…” etc. reading from the section and the point that the Town manager MAY adjust this.  He said explained that MRTF began this and had protection of the sea turtles and beach life issues in mind.
Ms. Sharon Faircloth owner of Holiday Water Sports, agreed with the LPA and hoped that they go ahead with the dismissal of the issue.  She added that the number limiting the operators of PWVLs and PALs originally was arrived at due to a safety issue.  

Gabriel Hickey addressed the LPA:    She told the LPA that she has minutes from the past meetings from Jan. 12 and March 29 a few years ago, wherein the number to limit furniture and equipment vendors was picked and it was because there were 14 vendors at the meeting but there are fewer now.  She said that she stacks her chairs and asked if the LPA thinks it is not a safety issue if someone should knock the stack down and gets hurt.  She said that she believes it is unfair for Mr. Weimer to decide to disregard the whole issue when at the last meeting all three of these vendors agreed on all of the suggestions except the added insurance.  
Chris Weber, of Mid Island Water Sports at the Holiday Inn, addressed the LPA and again said he didn’t mind so much the requirement to be licensed but more so the additional “agreement” the surface at MRTF meetings.  He said this is just a way to direct where the vendors can put their equipment and it becomes much more of a hardship.  He said that all of the added permits are just adding more fees and hardships on the vendors. 

Mr. Ryffel commented, for the record, that he had a brief ex-parte discussion about this a few weeks ago.

Resolution was drafted and approved by the members, to state that the LPA felt no further consideration of the proposed Section 14-12 was necessary.

Vote:

Motion carried 6-0.
B. Update on Impervious Connections to the ROW (Shamp/Van Duzer)
Ms. Shamp reported that she got a date of Aug. 11, 2009 for   having the recommended language for this item.
XIII. LPA MEMBER ITEMS AND REPORTS

Ms. Shamp asked for approval for the HPB to be heard first at the joint meeting with Council and asked if the Mayor could personally invite the members of the HAC.  Mr. Weimer added that there is a joint meeting between the LPA and the Council on Sept. 17th from 9:00 AM to noon.  Mr. Weimer requested that Ms. Shamp personally invite those members and advise them they will be first on that agenda.  Discussion ensued about the regular meeting of the LPA that week; vote taken decided there would a regular LPA meeting immediately following the joint meeting on Sept. 17th and no LPA meeting on Sept. 15th.  Mr. Mandel reported continued work on the budget.  The water utility committee is also still moving ahead.
Mr. Weimer reported that he wrote to Mr. Janke concerning the LPA’s desire to update the procedures manual in accordance with CIP process.  He read the letter into the record (in packet).  The decision was that there is no further action required since staff may bring CIP items to the LPA at any time.
No other items to report.

XIV. LPA ATTORNEY ITEMS
Ms. Dalton brought up a question asked by newest member, Mr. Ryffel:  Is it necessary for LPA members to go through every piece of a resolution when making a motion?  Ms. Dalton stated that if there is only a motion to approve zoning, there is nothing on the record indicating the findings of fact and it is necessary to put into the record what this body had determined so there is no guessing.  She did clarify, however, that reading of all of the “boilerplate” language was not necessary, only the specifics of the language where there is a choice, the LPA’s choice should be recorded.
Mr. Van Duzer asked the LPA to look at the Code of Ethics and read specifically #4:  “Members shall avoid the appearance of impropriety by refraining from engaging in private discussion with the applicant or their representatives about specific upcoming LPA agenda items.” He said he was concerned because he had been contacted by Pink Shell and asked to go there, as he was by the opposing sides as well, and he did meet with all of them.  He was not aware that this was an important ethical issue as long as he disclosed his ex parte communications.  Mr. Weimer agreed that this is an important item to address and clarify in the near future.
XV. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ITEMS
Dr. Shockey reported that ten plaques have been ordered.  He also said that the brochures will be printed ASAP.
XVI. LPA  ACTION ITEMS
Resolutions to Town Council

· Snug Harbor-continued to August 10, 2009 at 9:00 AM/Mr. Weimer
· Vacation Ordinance-Second hearing TBD (Ms. Kay)
· Gulfview-TBD

· Historic Plaque Program-on order; Ms. Shamp will set date-TBD
· Pink Shell Resort CPD to Council-Waiting for minutes; Mr. Weimer
Resolutions
· Town Council to have minutes for the Newton House issue on Aug. 17th.
Motion:     Mr. Mandel moved that the requirement for approved minutes to be available before 


       moving item to Council be waived.

       Second by Ms. Shamp;

Vote:
       Motion carried 6-0. 
· Resolution 2009-16-Beach Furniture to Council-Aug. 17th; Mr. Van Duzer

 Future Work Activities
· Rights-of-Way: LDC proposed language-report on Aug. 11, 2009
· Storm Water-TBD

· Seasonal Parking-Sept. 29, 2009

· Animal Control-Proposed draft ordinance-Oct. 27, 2009
· Alcoholic Beverages-Aug. 11, 2009

· Parcelization-TBD
Mr. Weimer asked Dr. Shockey for a list for the next meeting for the expiring terms for the LPA members.  
Motion:    Ms. Shamp moved to adjourn.
      Seconded by Mr. Mandel;
Vote:         Motion carried 6-0
XVII. ADJOURNMENT
Adjourned at 4:25 PM.
Next meeting August 11, 2009 10:30 AM.
Adopted _______________________ with/without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________






Dennis Weimer, LPA Chair

· End of document
LPA-July 14, 2009
Page 17 of 17

